A Member of the ECIDA Financing and Development Group

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CCRPORATION

Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
Meeting of the Membership
December 20, 2023
At 12:00 p.m.

Offices of the ECIDA (New Location)
95 Perry Street, 4™ Floor Conference Room
Buffalo, New York 14203

1.0 Call to Order
2.0 Approval of Minutes

2.1 Approval of the October 25, 2023 Meeting of the Membership Minutes (Action Item) (Pages 2-4)
3.0 Reports / Action Items / Information Items:

3.1 Financial Report (Informational) (Pages 5-8)

32 Loan Status Report (Informational) (Page 9)
3.3 Approval of DGEIS/Masterplan for Erie County Agribusiness Park (Action Item) (Pages 10-23)

4.0 Management Team Reports:
4.1

5.0 Adjournment- Next Meeting January 24, 2024






Draft
Subject to Board Approval

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OF THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

DATE AND PLACE:

PRESENT:

EXCUSED:

OTHERS PRESENT:

GUESTS:

(ILDC)

October 25, 2023, at the Center of Excellence in Bioinformatics and
Life Sciences (CBLS), 701 Ellicott Street, The Event
Space/Conference Room B2-205, located on the 2nd floor, Buffalo,
New York 14203.

Hon. April Baskin, Daniel Castle, Hon. Howard Johnson, Richard
Lipsitz, Jr. and Hon. Mark C. Poloncarz

Denise Abbott and Hon. Byron W. Brown

John Cappellino, President & CEO; Beth O’Keefe, Vice President of
Operations; Gerald Manhard, Chief Lending Officer; Andrew
Federick, Property & Business Development Officer; Atiga Abidi,
Accounting Manager; Soma Hawramee, Compliance Portfolio
Manager, Brian Krygier, Director of Information Technology; Carrie
Hocieniec, Operations Assistant/Assistant Secretary; Laurie Hendrix,
Administrative Coordinator; and Robert G. Murray, Esq., General
Counsel/Harris Beach PLLC

Zachary Evans on behalf of Erie County

There being a quorum present at 1:03 p.m., the Meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation was called to order its Chair,

Mzr. Poloncarz.

MINUTES

Mr. Lipsitz moved, and Mr. Castle seconded to approve of the September 27, 2023
minutes. Mr. Poloncarz called for the vote and the minutes were unanimously approved.

REPORTS / ACTION ITEMS / INFORMATION ITEMS

Financial Report. Ms. Abidi presented the September financial reports. The balance

sheet shows ILDC ended the month with total assets of $17.8M (Grants receivable of $9.2M,
represents amounts awarded by several sources, the largest being Buffalo Billion II funds of

Page 1 of 3



$6.7M from Empire State Development. Liabilities are mainly deferred grant revenue of $7.3M.
Net assets total $7.7M. One loan under the County Microloan program closed during the month.
The September income statement shows $1,700 of revenue, mainly loan interest income under
the County’s Microloan program. There were also $1,900 of expenses and $2,600 of special
project revenue, resulting in net loss of about $2,800 in September. The year-to-date income
statement shows revenues of $159,000 and expenses of $58,000, included in this figure is
$10,000 of bond administrative fee revenue that was subsequently paid to ECIDA under the
existing shared services agreement. Net special project revenue of $261,000 leads to net income
of $362,000 so far in 2023. Mr. Poloncarz directed that the report be received and filed.

Finance and Audit Committee Update. Ms. Abidi reviewed the various processes of the
ILDC budget development and confirmed formal budget approval will be presented at the
October Board meeting. Ms. McDuffie directed that the report be received and filed.

Review of 2024 Budget Timetable and Approval of 2024 Proposed Budget. Ms. Abidi
reviewed the budget review process. She stated that the ILDC held two Budget Q&A sessions
since the last Board meeting and had some good insights and conversation around the process.
Ms. Abidi also recommended the proposed 2024 budget be approved and explained the changes
to the budget for 2024 and the budget itself. She stated there haven’t been any changes to the
2024 budgeted amounts since the budget was reviewed last month. The 2023 projections were
updated. For 2024 we are budgeting revenue of $783,000, factoring in cost of land sales we have
total revenue of ($66,500), expenses of $211,000, and net special project expenses of $300,000.
Special projects include Renaissance Commerce Park and the Angola Ag Park. After
depreciation, budgeted net loss amounts to $582,000. She also reviewed the 3-year forecast as
required by the ABO. Mr. Johnson moved, and Mr. Castle seconded to approve the proposed
2024 budget. Mr. Poloncarz called for the vote and the proposed 2024 budget was unanimously
approved.

Loan Status Report. Mr. Manhard provided this report to Committee members. Mr.
Poloncarz directed that the report be received and filed.

3445 River Road Property Discussion. Mr. Lipsitz moved and Mr. Castle seconded to
enter into Executive Session to discuss the contemplated sale/lease of real property publicity of
which would substantially affect the value of the property. Mr. Poloncarz called for the vote and
the motion was then unanimously approved.

At 1:10 p.m., the ILDC entered into Executive Session.

Upon motion made by Mr. Lipsitz and seconded by Mr. Castle, and unanimously
approved, the ILDC terminated Executive Session at 1:28 p.m.

Mr. Johnson moved, and Mr. Lipsitz seconded to approve of providing MN8 Energy with
an option to lease the ILDC property at 3445 River Road, Tonawanda, New York, said option
providing MN8 Energy with time to conduct due diligence for purposes of potentially entering
into a lease upon the same property, for purposes of installing a battery storage facility. General

Page 2 of 3



discussion ensured. Mr. Poloncarz called for the vote and the following resolution was then
unanimously approved.

RESOLUTION OF THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (THE “ILDC”) AUTHORIZING
THE ILDC TO (i) EXECUTE AND DELIVER A NONBINDING TERM
SHEET TO BE ENTERED INTO BETWEEN ILDC AND MN8 ENERGY
(“MN8”) FOR THE LEASE OF 3445 RIVER ROAD, TONANWANDA, NEW
YORK AND (ii) NEGOITATE AND EXECUTE AN OPTION AND LEASE
AGREEMENT WITH MNS8 IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND
CONDITIONS OF THE TERM SHEET

There being no further business to discuss, Mr. Poloncarz adjourned the meeting at
1:33 p.m.

Dated: October 25, 2023

Elizabeth A. O’Keefe, Secretary

Page 3 of 3



Industrial Land Development Corp.

Financial Statements
As of November 30, 2023




INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")

Balance Sheet
November 30, 2023

November 2023 October 2023 December 2022
ASSETS:
Restricted Cash * $ 417,333 $ 897,594 $ 1,255,405
Grants Receivable 9,191,178 9,191,178 10,212,072
Loans Receivable, net 603,495 667,480 659,404
Prepaid Expenses 1,824 3,647 31,500
Prepaid Acquisition Costs 695,443 695,443 692,934
Total Loan Assets 10,999,273 11,455,343 12,751,316
Capital Assets 6,358,485 © 6,358,424 6,174,218
Total Assets $ 17,357,758 $ 17,813,767 $ 18,925,534
LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS:
Accounts Payable $ o0 9 0 9 824,129
Due to/(from) ECIDA 4,608,486 3,802,940 179,722
Other Liabilities 5,047,069 6,303,590 10,572,025
Total Liabilities 9,655,555 10,106,531 11,575,876
Restricted Fund Balance 7,702,203 7,707,236 7,349,658
Total Liabilities & Net Assets $ 17,357,758 3 17,813,767 $ 18,925,534
Loan Portfolio Summary: November 2023 October 2023 December 2022
# of Loans 40 39 36

* Cash is invested in interest bearing accounts at M&T Bank.

The maximum FDIC insured amount is $250,000 with the remainder collateralized

with government obligations by the financial institution.




INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ("ILDC")

Income Statement

Month of November 2023

REVENUES:
Interest Income - Loans
Grant Income - Microloan Program
Proceeds from (Cost of) Land Sales
Other Income
interest Income - Cash & Inv.
Total Revenues

EXPENSES:
Management Fee - ECIDA
Professional Services
General Office Expenses
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

SPECIAL PROJECT GRANTS:
Industrial Land Park - ESD
Industrial Land Park - EDA
Industrial Land Park - ECIDA
Angola Ag Park - ECIDA Grant
Other grant revenue

Industrial Land Park grant reimbursement

Industrial Land Park costs
Angola Ag Park costs
Other grant expenses

NET INCOME/(LOSS):

Actual vs. Budget

Actual Budget Variance
1,500 §$ 1,083 418
- 11,667 (11,667)
- 25,000 (25,000)
213 17 197
1,713 37,767 (36,054)
2,000 $ 15833 $ (13,833)
1,805 5417 (3,612)
0 17 (17)
(260) 3,581 (3,841)
3,545 24,848 (21,303)
662,534 217,696 444,838
592 495 - 592,495
- 5,833 (5,833)
- 8,333 (8,333)
1,529 23,609 (22,080)
- (12,500) 12,500
(1,256,855) (223,529) (1,033,326)
(1,375) (8,333) 6,959
(1,529) (24,775) 23,247
(3,201) (13,667) 10,465
(5,033) % (748) $ (4,285)

* Represents an allocation of salary and benefit costs from the ECIDA based on time charged
to ILDC. The amount booked is currently based on 2023 budget.



INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (“IL.DC")
Income Statement
Year to Date: November 30, 2023

| Actual vs. Budget || Actual vs. Prior Year i
Actual Budget Variance Actual Prior Year Variance
REVENUES:
Interest Income - Loans $ 18,427 % 11,917 % 6,510 $ 18,427 § 10,141 $ 8,285
Grant Income - Microloan Program 129,000 128,333 667 129,000 393,352 (264,352)
Proceeds from (Cost of) Land Sales - 275,000 (275,000) - (181,324) 181,324
Other Income 11,200 - 11,200 11,200 180,100 (178,900)
Interest Income - Cash & Inv. 3,556 183 3,374 3,556 328 3,228
Total Revenues 162,183 415,433 (253,250) 162,183 412,598 (250,415)
EXPENSES:
Management Fee - ECIDA $ 57,600 $ 174,167 (116,567) $ 57,600 $ 215,000  § (157,400)
Professional Services 7,420 59,583 (52,163) 7,420 35,853 (28,432)
General Office Expenses (0) 183 (183) (0) 1,053 (1,053)
Other Expenses (1,080) 39,394 (40,474) {1,080) 2,021 (3.101)
Total Expenses 63,940 287,077 (223,137) 63,940 253,927 (189,987)
SPECIAL PROJECT GRANTS:
Industrial Land Park - ESD 2,991,182 2,394,654 596,528 2,991,182 479,424 2,511,758
Industrial Land Park - EDA 2,330,734 - 2,330,734 2,330,734 - 2,330,734
Industrial Land Park - ECIDA 180,651 64,167 116,484 180,651 19,775 160,876
Angola Ag Park - ECIDA Grant 29,680 91,667 (61,986) 29,680 37,462 (7,782)
Other grant revenue 203,419 259,695 (56,276) 203,419 61,817 141,602
Industrial Land Park grant reimbursement - (137,500) 137,500 - (103,625) 103,625
Industrial Land Park costs (5,411,694) (2,458,821)  (2,952,873) (5,411,694) (577,188) (4,834,505)
Angola Ag Park costs (16,112) (91,667) 75,555 (16,112) (14,484) (1,628)
Other grant expenses (53,559) (272,529) 218,970 (53,559) (61,817) 8,258
254,302 (150,333) 404,635 254,302 (158,636) 412,938
NET INCOME/(LOSS): $ 352545 $ (21,977) $ 374,523 $ 352545 % 35 $ 352509

* Represents an allocation of salary and benefit costs from the ECIDA based on time charged
to ILDC. The amount booked is currently based on 2023 budget.



A Member of the ECIDA Financing and Development Group

INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Loan Status Report
December 2023

ILDC Loans Approved Since Last Meeting Municipality Amount

None

ILDC Loans Closed Since Last Meeting Municipality Amount
None

Loans in Closing Process Municipality Amount
None

Loans in the Pipeline Municipality Amount
None

2023 - Loans Closed YTD Loan Total  Jobs to be Created Retained Jobs

8 $280,000 7 12.5

Loan Portfolio Performance

Past Due Loans:

Outstanding
Loan Balance Amount Past Due Days Past Due Comments
Kevin Thie d/b/a Borrower filed Chapter 7
Buffalo Firewood $34,723 $672.00 40 bankruptcy: Pursuing legal action.

Portfolio Delinguency Rate (Past Due Qutstanding Loan Balance divided by Portfolio Balance);

$34,723 /81,173,262 = 3.0% Delinquency Rate (40 Loans)

ILDC Funds Available to Lend: $76,517

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 « fx. 716.856.6754 » www.ecidany.com

-9_



3

INDUS TRIAL LAND DEVELCBIMENT CORPORATICN

MEMORANDUM

Date: December 20%, 2023

To: Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC)
Board of Directors

From: ILDC Staff

Re: Erie County Agribusiness Park — Approval of Draft Generic Environmental

Impact Statement (DGEIS/Masterplan)

Summary

In 2020, the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (the “ILDC”) purchased 240
acres from private owners at the former Eden Angola Airport in the Town of Evans for purposes of establishing
the Erie County Agribusiness Park (“Ag Park”). The ILDC, County of Erie (“Erie County™) and its partners are
focused on attracting businesses to the park to establish facilities dedicated to agribusiness processing, storage and
distribution creating new capital investment for the local economy and job creation for the local community.

Since 2021, the ILDC and Erie County have worked with design and engineering consultant Wendel on the
development of a masterplan for the Ag Park. The masterplan includes comprehensive plans for utilities, a road
network and development parcels as well as a Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement (“DGEIS”) which
assesses the potential significant environmental impacts associated with the proposed development.

Upon approval of the DGEIS by the ILDC board, a public comment period will commence during which the
public and involved and interested agencies may submit written comments to the ILDC relating to the DGEIS
from December 26, 2023 to January 24, 2024. The ILDC shall also hold a public hearing at the Town of Evans
Town Hall, 8787 Erie Road, Angola, New York 14006, on January 18, 2024 commencing at 6:00 p.m. during
which the public may submit comments and shall duly publish a notice of the hearing at least fourteen (14) days
prior to the public hearing being conducted. '

Upon completion of the public comment period, the ILDC will evaluate the comments and incorporate them into
the DGEIS where appropriate. Once the evaluation and incorporation of the public comments is complete a Final
Generic Environmental Impact Statement (“FGEIS™) will be prepared and brought back to the ILDC board for

final approval prior to implementation.

Requested Action:

Seeking approval from ILDC board of directors for the Erie County Agribusiness Park Draft Generic
Environmental Impact Statement.

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 « fx. 716.856.6754 « www.ecidany.com

-10-



BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
SEQRA RESOLUTION

A meeting of the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
was convened on Wednesday, December 20, 2023, at 12:00 p.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:

RESOLUTION OF THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (“ILDC”) ACCEPTING DRAFT
GENERIC ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT FOR A
DEVELOPMENT MASTER PLAN OF APPROXIMATELY 242.03 ACRES OF
LAND LOCATED AT 1526 EDEN EVANS CENTER ROAD IN THE TOWN
OF EVANS, COUNTY OF ERIE, INTO AN AGRI-BUSINESS PARK FOR
FUTURE AGRICULTURAL RELATED BUSINESSES

WHEREAS, the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (the
“ILDC”) desires to adopt and implement a master plan for the development of approximately
242.03 acres of land located at 1526 Eden Evans Center Road in the Town of Evans, County of
Erie, which was the former site of the Evans-Angola Airport, into an agri-business park for
future agricultural related businesses (the “Proposed Action™); and

WHEREAS, on March 26, 2021, the ILDC circulated a letter to potential involved and
interested agencies declaring its intent to act as Lead Agency pursuant to the New York State
Environmental Quality Review Act and its implementing regulations promulgated at
6 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 617 (collectively referred to as "SEQRA") for the purpose of conducting a
coordinated review of the Proposed Action pursuant to SEQRA; and

WHEREAS, upon receiving no objections from potential involved agencies, on April 28,
2021, the ILDC passed a resolution declaring itself Lead Agency, issuing a positive declaration
requiring the preparation of a Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement (“DGEIS”) for the
Proposed Action, and accepting a draft scoping document for the DGEIS pursuant to SEQRA;
and

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the draft scoping document for the DGEIS was held on
May 18, 2021; and

WHEREAS, on June 23, 2021, a final scoping document for the DGEIS was accepted by
the ILDC; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the final scoping document, a DGEIS has been prepared which

assesses the potential significant adverse environmental impacts associated with the Proposed
Action.

-11-



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Pursuant to 6 N.Y.C.R.R. § 617.9(a)(2) of the SEQRA regulations, the
ILDC accepts the DGEIS as complete for the purpose of commencing the necessary public
review of the DGEIS and directs that copies of the DGEIS be provided to all involved and
interested agencies, as well as to any individual requesting a copy. The ILDC further directs that
copies of the DGEIS be posted on the website located at www.ecidany.com and maintained at
the ILDC offices.

Section 2. The ILDC shall prepare, file, and publish a Notice of Completion for the
DGEIS in accordance with 6 N.Y.C.R.R. § 617.9(a)(3).

Section 3. Pursuant to 6 N.Y.CR.R. §§ 617.9(a)(4) of the SEQRA regulations, a
comment period during which the public and involved and interested agencies may submit
written comments to the ILDC relating to the DGEIS shall extend from December 26, 2023 to
January 24, 2024. The ILDC shall also hold a public hearing at the Town of Evans Town Hall,
8787 Erie Road, Angola, New York 14006, on January 18, 2024 commencing at 6:00 p.m.
during which the public may submit comments and shall duly publish a notice of the hearing at
least fourteen (14) days prior to the public hearing being conducted.

Section 4. The ILDC further directs that notice of this resolution shall be filed and
circulated to the extent required by any applicable ordinance, statute or regulation.

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

ADOPTED: December 20, 2023.

-12-



Executive Summary

ES.1 Description of the Proposed Action

The Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC), acting as lead agency
pursuant to the State Environmental Quality Review Act and its implementing regulations promulgated
thereto in 6 NYCRR Part 617 (collectively referred to as SEQRA), has prepared this Draft Generic
Environmental Impact Statement (DGEIS) to assess the potential environmental impacts that may result
from the implementation and construction of the proposed Erie Countyff"'Agribusiness Park (the “Project,”
“Proposed Action,” or “Master Plan”). i

The total Project site consists of 242.03 acres and is located g{Edeﬁ‘ hvans Center Road in the Town of
Evans (the “Project Site”). The Project involves the adqp’t’iot\i‘and implementation of a master plan for

development of the Project Site and installation and co_ns{ iction of utilities and infrastructure in support of

the future Agricultural related light industrial and coﬁimércial development of ;?gpj ect Site.

It is anticipated that the Project will result in the use of Eif‘d%rim_er onfs’fgé aircraft runwé?ffq; installation of
an on-site roadway, new water and sewer infiastructure, and hew stormwater managemex‘l‘%‘:fg;éilities. Private
utilities are also required to be construc 'édft‘é_Support the mhgézlbuild-out of development parcels for
agriculturally related commercial and light ;_mdﬁs@al . Qpportunﬁi’@% The number of businesses to be
accommodated at the Project Site will depend‘t;{qp de‘ma'v‘r{dx-aga_g user nqug.. _

It is anticipated that the ijéét WIHIQ\?erage alterf’;itiyg engrgy sougces throt gh the creation of a microgrid
and will include trails and other greenspace amenitiés{; g

s };w &
Thresholds and standards for 1"uture development will be\i;_stablished to help guide development in a manner

consistent v;ith the Master Plan and i a mMeIQhat mitig‘qtcs potential environmental impacts.
p ’. 5 g 5’( - a\,_‘: T - i ¢ X
ES.2 State Environmé'it\ajl Quality Review Act Process
A Full Enviran@ental Assessmeﬁt‘form, P;cii"txl_v ; was completed by the ILDC in accordance with 6 NYCRR
§ 617(f) of the SEQRA regulations:,The Proposed Action is classified as a Type 1 Action for the purposes
of this SEQRA revi\évg._ The ILDC circulated a lead agency solicitation letter on March 26, 2021, proposing
to seck SEQRA lead agency status for the Project. On April 28, 2021, upon receiving no objections from
potentially involved agenct‘i'es?'thg_ LDC resolved to assume designation as lead agency. A draft scoping
document dated April 15, 202 1‘5'_)¥ds prepared and circulated to the involved agencies and interested parties.
A public scoping meeting was held on May 18, 2021. The final scoping document was issued by the ILDC

on June 23, 2021.

ES.3 Environmental Assessment of Proposed Action

Section 3 of the DGEIS describes the existing environmental setting of the Project Site and identifies
potential impacts from the preferred alternative: Option 1, full build-out of the Master Plan as a multi-site
agricultural park. Portions of Section 3 analysis also consider and compare impacts of Option 1 to the

Executive Summary ES-1 Executive Summary

-13-



Town of Evans

Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement
Erie County, New York

Proposed Erie County Agribusiness Park Project

potential wetland/conservation area option: Option 2, partial build-out. Wherever possible, Section 3 of the
DGEIS offers mitigation measures to reduce the magnitude of potential significant adverse impacts.

ES.3.1 Potential Adverse Environmental Impacts

Land Resources: Topography and Soils

The overall topography of the Project Site is relatively uniform, and site soils are characterized as poorly
drained. Major portions of the natural topographic features across the Project Site have been previously
disturbed as the property was utilized over the years as a small local airport. A runway and taxiways, a few
small metal buildings, and roadways are present on the former auport property. The Project Site is
categorized as currently vacant.

Portions of the Project’s proposed development lots will be df‘s’tur'l;ed’hgain as the Project Site is developed
as an agricultural park with buildings, parking, new infrastructure and utilities, and/or landscaped green
space. This disturbance will cause temporary, sho’i{t-term impacts to<land and soils associated with
construction-related activities. Impacts will inclyde earth-moving work to\(\:‘onstruct and install on-site
infrastructure, including access roads and ut1hty Tings. Gradmg may be condiicted at some locations to
accommodate development. Future development is expected to Lnéfude the consﬁucg\on of new structures,
parking lots, stormwater detention pends, landscaping; \and other elements of deyelopment. This
construction may result in site alteratlon tQ‘z}ccommodate fo,gndatlons, paved areas, and other features.
Temporary construction impacts, such as ‘generatign of dust, erosion, or sediment run-off, may occur. The
contractors will be required to follow the p‘rqvision‘smf a Stormwater, Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP)
prepared in compliance w1th fegiilations of the'New York State Deparlment of Environmental Conservation

(NYSDEC) during the course ofo nes\ﬁe constru 1:\1\011 gcf( vities. \\L

Land use on the Pro;ect S{’Ee will be ¢changed permanently, and the amount of impervious surfaces at the
Project Site w111 increase, Prov1s1ons regardmg maxunum lot coverage and required landscaping will be
adhered to in accordance w1th the Town of Evan s zonlng requirements. Tenants will be required to follow
the prov1s10ns of the SV‘LPPP durln% the course “of_site construction activities. Future developers will be
requlred to comply with Town of Evans‘zomng regulatlons addressing maximum lot coverage and required
landscapmgg With these measures in place, no s1gmﬁcant negative impacts to lands or soils are anticipated
as a result of the Proposed ACth‘fl‘.‘ :

Water Resources\;_' : [

Presently, no groundwater wells are located on the Project Site, and the Project Site is not located over a
primary, principal, or sole-source aquifer. The Project Site contains several small surface water resources,
consisting of two small ponds ‘and an intermittent stream. Drainage ditches and culverts are also present
within and around the existing on-site structures. The ditches are contoured into the landscape on the eastern
side of the main runway to promote drainage from the impervious surface of the runway. Culverts in place
under the runway carry natural surface water flows from adjacent areas. Because the ditches lack a scoured
channel and an ordinary high-water mark, they do not meet the federal definition of a waterway and

therefore are not considered surface waters.

The two small ponds are located west of the runway on the southern portion of the Project Site and to the
north of the existing airplane hangar. These ponds comprise approximately 0.6 acre. No named streams are

LExecutive Summary ES-2 Executive Summary

-14-



Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement Town of Evans
Proposed Erie County Agribusiness Park Project Erie County, New York

present on the Project Site according to U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) topographic maps, but an unnamed
tributary to Little Sister Creek is present in the southeastern corner of the Project Site. An on-site delineation
of potential wetlands mapped approximately 632 linear feet of this stream. This delineation also determined
the stream has intermittent flow and flows to the north, where it joins Little Sister Creek off site.

An initia] review of the National Wetland Inventory (NWI) indicated the presence of three potentially
regulated wetlands located on the Project site. Two of these potentially regulated wetlands are described as
palustrine forested wetlands (PFO1B) and palustrine forested with scrub-shrub component (PFO/SS1B),
and they are located in the northwestern quadrant of the Project Site. The third potentially regulated wetland
is located on the southeastern quadrant and is described as a palustrirfe’scrub-shrub wetland (PSS1C). The
total acreage of potentially regulated wetlands that may be present‘fgi‘l'tﬁg Project Site according to the NWI
maps is 13.6 acres. Despite the NWI maps identifying only, cent of the Project Site as potentially
regulated wetlands, the walkover survey conducted in Aprfll 2021 '1dent1ﬁed a larger portion of the Project
Site as potentially regulated wetlands. In light of the é‘éent U.S. Supre‘r{ne Court’s decision in Sackett v.
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, and in oder o better guide the. des1gn process and evaluate
potential impacts, a further wetland delineation report was finalized in July 2023 A delineation of areas
that could potentially be regulated state and federal Wetlands was conducted over S Vcral days in November
2021 and again in July 2023. These on-site field s map ¢d a total of 89. 26{cres of potentially

regulated wetlands. ( \ i o
X

Importantly, and again in light of the U‘S Supreme Court’ sd smn in Sackett v. U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency, the surveys could not ce{mect these potentlally regulated wetlands to any permanent
waterway that is a part of/the stream networks \t‘o a trad/lﬁt,lonal navrgable\gvaterway As such, the potential
wetlands at the Pro_]ec%:\t Slte are assumed to be ngn-regulated under the Clean Water Act. As the Project
progresses, an Approved Junsdrctrdpal Deternnn\atron will be sought from the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers to confirm this’ prelnmnary survey prior b, the development of certain areas of the Project Site.
Accordmg to NYSDEC Wetlands maps no wetlands are present at the Project Site that are subject to New
York State regulatlon Optron l and Optlon 2 of t‘h\e Master Plan for the site development reflects this issue,
with Optron 1 representln the potentral wetlands hemg non-regulated and Option 2 representing these
potentlal‘wetlands being re lated and’ av01d1ng them for development.

The Pro_lect thrgugh constructlon of roads bulldmgs and facilities, will increase the impervious surface
area on the Project § Slte Impervrous surfaces reduce the ability of water to percolate into the soil, thereby
reducing an area’s contnbutron to rechargmg groundwater supplies. The quality of the water running off of
impervious surfaces can a\lso be degraded due to the presence of soluble pollutants such as nitrates and
chlorides. Option 1 (full burld\-out) would convert 99 acres of land to impervious land, and Option 2 (partial
build-out) would convert 48 acres to impervious land.

Because no Federal Emergency Management Agency mapped floodplains are present at the Project Site,
no effects to floodplains will occur as a result of the Project.

Potentially regulated wetlands encompass a large area of the Project Site, and implementing the Project will
have direct and indirect impacts to these potentially regulated on-site wetlands. The preferred alternative,
Option 1, will have the most direct impacts to these potentially regulated wetlands, with approximately
51.30 acres of potentially regulated on-site wetlands being impacted, dredged, or filled. However, 100

Executive Summary ES-3 Executive Summary

-15-



Town of Evans

Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement
Erie County, New York

Proposed Erie County Agribusiness Park Project

percent of these 51.30 acres will most probably be categorized as federally non-regulated wetland, as they
do not have a significant nexus to surface waters.

The Project may have indirect impacts to these potentially regulated wetlands by changing surficial and
groundwater flows to potential regulated wetlands adjacent to developed areas on site and off site. The
amount and direction of the flows may be altered by the Project, resulting in localized changes to the
hydroperiod within these potentially regulated wetlands. This may cause changes in the local plant
communities to species more tolerant of frequent ponding or to those more tolerant of drier conditions.
These potentially regulated wetlands may also receive an increase in sedimentation, nutrients, and
pollutants within runoff from the Project, which can also create ;l,lfgq)ges in these potentially regulated
wetlands that result in additional localized plant community shifts«Habitat fragmentation is another indirect
wetland impact that several of these potentially regulated vggtﬁnds could experience from implementing
the Project. Wetlands A—North, D, and E extend outsidé Qf,-‘fh;\lifojcct boundaries. Impacts to these
potentially regulated wetlands reduce the overall size.of the wetland area and cause fragmentation of it.
This fragmentation can decrease the ecological servi'/c'es, the wetland prox}iq_es‘r to the watershed and allow
for the colonization of invasive species. The prQJ',é,Ct‘ design and mitigatio\ﬁs;iwifl"l help to reduce these

impacts. b e “w\

It is anticipated that the Project Site wilél‘féquire pcrmanerft‘sé:(innwater retention and tréatment measures to
mitigate the impervious surface impacts;‘.\ Rerthe New York Sfizthtormwater Design Manual (2015), green
infrastructure practices such as preserving‘ift)ré"steqk areas, utilizing vegetation buffers, open space design,
and rain gardens will be used whenever pragﬁcablé. “The Project Sitg will be designed and built to meet
state stormwater performarice -st}inglards, thus \'fn‘,l;nimizin_g{lmpaC{ts on g}bgn_dwater quantity and quality.

It is expected that ove%g\ie acre of grqund dlsturl}aqgg will occur;‘t\li‘e’féfore, a SWPPP will be prepared and
implemented during constrgction. The SWPPP will‘gomply with the requirements of the New York State
Pollution Discharge Elimin‘ét'@n, System "General Permit for Stormwater Discharges from Construction
Activityﬁ(.Gf’-O-20‘-QQl). This will ensure that stormwater discharges such as silt-laden runoff that could
occur c,‘l;uring construction will not Baye an adverse i@?act on neighboring surface waters.

Air Quality and Climate \\

Impacts to air quality may occur’ from vehicular exhausts. Based on the traffic impact analysis studies,
traffic is not anticﬁ:»qte.d to excee(;? that of the average annual growth rate for the area; therefore, vehicle-
related emissions impaqts‘ are anti‘lci'pated to be minimal, and no significant adverse impacts are expected.
During construction, dustn“)ay increase, but it is anticipated to be temporary in nature and will not occur
over prolonged periods of time. Should tenants propose any use that requires a state or federal air quality
permit, or if the proposed use requires air modeling and analysis, adherence to the necessary steps for

obtaining the air permit would be required, including adoption of mitigation measures or testing or
modelling.

In addition, the Town of Evans Zoning Code regulates air quality by requiring that all industrial districts,
which includes the Project Site (zoned Light Industrial [LI]), curb air pollution (Town of Evans 1987).
Section 200-26(C)(1) requires that “the emission of smoke, soot, fly ash, fumes, dust and other types of air
pollution borne by the wind shall be controlled so that the rate of emission and quantity deposited shall not
be detrimental to, or endanger, the public health, safety, comfort or welfare or adversely affect property

Executive Summary ES-4 Executive Summary

-16-



Town of Evans

Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement
Erie County, New York

Proposed Erie County Agribusiness Park Project

values.” Section 200-26(C)(8) requires that “the emission of toxic, noxious or corrosive fumes or gases
which would be injurious to property, vegetation, animals or human health at or beyond the boundaries of
the lot occupied by the use shall not be permitted.” Therefore, future uses of the Project’s proposed lots by
future tenants must adhere to all aspects of the Town of Evans Zoning Code and are not anticipated to

significantly impact air quality.

The Project intends to be, to the extent feasible, electric/renewable/battery powered, which could potentially
offset the fossil fuel emissions generated from the vehicles and equipment used for Project construction.
Coordination with the Erie County Department of Environment and Planning to ensure that the Project and
its tenants comply with the county’s climate action and sustainabili }y»m1t1at1ves will help avoid, minimize,

and potentially mitigate any climate change impacts associated ) ¢ Project.

Terrestrial and Ecological Resources

No rare, threatened, or endangered species are known,tf';d occur at the P\FOJ ect:Site or within the vicinity of
the Project Site. Northern long-eared bat, a federally and“state endangered“sppmes could be utilizing the
forested areas on the Project Site during the springand summer months. Inadv-e{tent impacts to this listed
species can be avoided by conducting tree clearing ;}n‘vmes between November 1~ and March 31 when
the bats are hibernating offsite. Habitat j ,1s not a 11m1t1ng factor for'thls species therefore loss of forestland
at the Project Site will not have an advérse effeet on this spec1es “The Project Site lacks' significant,
unique or rare natural communities as well. The 1mplementat10q§\f the Master Plan and subsequent site
development will not result in significant adverse 1mpacts to those ‘natural communities or listed species

when adhering to tree cleanng restriction dat % - N “\\ i

Subsequent build-out of fhe md1v1dual development 10t§/ wﬂl result in the loss of forestland and the
preservation of greensépace which w11i1nclude wetlands and forestiand The forest types found at the
Project Site are common fo rest types for the region and forestland is in abundance in the region. The
resulting 1mpacts will not have an overall effect on the regional ecology and land cover. It will have an
impact on- the local wxldllfe 1nd1v;duals who™ currently utihze the Project Site as habitat. The Project Site is
relatlvely small compared to a reglonal/landscape scale necessary to support wildlife assemblages.

Wlldhfe ou and in the v1cu\1‘1ty of the PrOJect Site is typical of wildlife found in suburban and rural areas
in Western New York. Development of the’ Prolect Site will result in temporary and permanent impacts to
wildlife resources and habitat. How wildlife responds to construction and operation of the Project is
species dependent In general, less mobile species will have high mortality whereas more mobile species
will retreat during conS‘tructxon and many will return and interact on the Project Site differently than
before. The lawn and landscap‘mg around the facilities within the Project will provide different habitat for
wildlife and change how maﬁy wildlife species currently utilize the Project Site. There will be less
natural cover and food resources once the Project is implemented.

Land Use, Zoning, and Agriculture

The Master Plan for this site will allow a currently vacant and commercial/industrial designated land use to
be redeveloped with new and varied light industrial uses to support agriculture in the County. The Project
Site has remained predominantly vacant for the past 20 years and contains a former airport hangar building,
a mechanic’s shop, and an airport runway. Recently, a new Water Storage Tank and related infrastructure

has been constructed at the project site.

Executive Summary ES-5 Executive Summary

-17-



Town of Evans

Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement
Erie County, New York

Proposed Erie County Agribusiness Park Project

The Comprehensive Plan for the Town of Evans supports the zoning of this site and the development of
this Agricultural Industrial Park. The Project Site is zoned light industrial (LI), which meets the intent of
this project. The Master Plan is consistent with the allowable land uses and dimensional requirements for
this district. Meeting the applicable zoning requirements would minimize potential impacts to land use,
visual resources, and noise and air quality guidelines. The proposed use of the Project Site for Light
Industrial uses will not result in significant adverse impacts to the surrounding community.

Presently, the Project Site is not actively farmed and, due to the quality of the Project Site, has not been
used for agriculture in many years. However, the Project Site is located within 500 feet of the Southwest
#8 Agricultural District (Erie County 2021), and it is required that prd‘ ects within an agricultural district or
within 500 feet of a farm operation that is located in an agncultur istrict prepare an agricultural data
statement. This rule is applicable for projects seeking an apglication for a special use permit, site plan
approval, use variance, or subdivision approval requmng m’(ummpal rev1ew and approval.

The Project will have a positive impact on agrlculmr/;l resources in the Town of Evans and Erie County
because it will support the processing and trans ortatlon of agricultural products grown throughout the

region. A .

<&, S
Aesthetic Resources Y Gad T

A"

Land uses in the vicinity of the Project \Slte are a mix of rural residential and open space. Some other
commercial/industrial uses are located along Eden Evans Center ‘Road. It is anticipated that at least some
of the new construction for the Project w111\be V1s1ble\from Eden Evans Center Road. The Project will
present a different character from the existing use and ﬁrom adjoining land uses. Future development will
include new commercfal/mdustnal/warehouse sﬁ‘ucun’es _parking. lots .and ancillary structures in place of
open and wooded lands: \The exxstmg wiews are of dilapidated metal bulldmgs that do not contribute to the
visual character of the area, Future developmcnt will be governed by the Town of Evans’ zoning code,
which addresses maximum lo’tncoverage and landscapmg requirements. The Project is consistent with the

Town of- Evans comprehenswe plan and its zomng, and with other similar uses within the town.

No exisfing significant aesfhetic resoﬁrces were identified and therefore, none would be affected by the
Project. No sig ificant views W111 be ehmmated and no officially designated scenic resources are located
nearby. It is expected that the new, buildings Of the Project will be relatively low-profile, one- or two-story
buildings, helping to mitigate thelr1v1s1b1hty and impacts to aesthetics.

There are some existing residen’fial uses near the front of the project site along Eden Evans Center Road
and the project design (buffers, landscaping and Town design requirements) will reduce visual impacts to

these adjoining uses.

Future development will be subject to site plan review by the Town of Evans Planning Board, and
developers will be required to comply with zoning regulations. Potential mitigations could include
restrictions on building heights and/or implementation of architectural standards, especially fror buildings
visible from Eden Evans Center Road. Screening and landscaping will be in accordance with the town’s

Zoning requirements.

Exceutive Summary ES-6 Execulive Summary

-18-



Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement Town of Evans
Proposed Erie County Agribusiness Park Project Erie County, New York

With these measures in place, no significant negative impacts to aesthetic resources are anticipated as a
result of the Proposed Action.

Historic and Cultural Resources

A Phase 1A archaeological survey was prepared in response to a request by the New York State Office of
Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation/State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO). This Phase 1A
survey, prepared in June 2021, concluded that no historic properties or sensitive archaeological or historic
resources will be affected by the Project development. A potentially sensitive archaeological area was noted
on the southern portion of the Project Site, but it will be avoided dunng construction. Therefore, it is
anticipated that implementation of the Master Plan and build-out of:the individual development sites, either
fully or partially, will not result in any significant adverse mpqe{’ ‘Censequently, no mitigation measures
for cultural resources are required. ‘

Transportation

A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was completed by Wé/ del Engmeermg to ev;?uate the existing local vehicular
transportation network and to assess potential impacts the Project would have on local traffic. In order to
quantify potential impacts to the transportation network;, the quahty “of traffic ﬂow\%vas assessed in terms of
levels of service (LOS). The preferred alternatlve Option 1, w111 have the most 1mpact on’ fraffic and require
more extensive mitigation, including mgnahzatxon of the mtergectmn of Eden Evans Center Road and the
Project Site access road, and the addltlon of dedlcated left turn lanes to the eastbound and westbound
approaches of the intersection of Eden Evans Center ‘Road and Us ‘Route 20. Option 2 will have a minor
impact on traffic; the only m1t1gat10n required-will be optumzatlon of \he 51gna1 at the intersection of Eden
Evans Center Road and US’ Route 20. The pr03ect development w111 be phased to allow for these
1mprovements/m1t1gatlons when warr'{mted " -

, g

The site also has access to a'railroad and the potentlal for a railroad spur has been accommodated into the
Master Plari for optlon 1. TR _ X

f}‘ .

Public. Utllltles and Infrastructure

W
With 1mprovements to ex1st1hg dlstnbutlon systems, adequate natural gas, electric, water, and

telecommumcatlons/telephone/cable services are available to support the Project. Improvements (storage
tank and waterhnes) to the water system have already been completed and will service this site. However,
it was determined that. there is limited capacity at the Big Sister Creek Water Resource Recovery Facility
(WRRF). Without upgrades to the WRREF, only 100,000 gallons per day (peak daily flow) of sewer capacity
may be available for the Pro_;ect based on monthly discharge limits.

One of the proposed improvements, when warranted, is the construction of a new 15 kV substation to serve
the Project Site, which has the potential to be part of a micro-grid, a self-sufficient energy system that uses
distributed energy, such as solar panels, wind turbines, battery storage and other technologies to produce

and store power.

The Project will increase the amount of solid waste generated by the Project Site as the Project Site is
currently unoccupied. As individual developments are built out, they will be responsible for contracting for
solid waste collection and complying with Chapter 168 of the Evans Town Code, as well as NYSDEC

Executive Summary ES-7 Executive Summary

-19-



Town of Evans

Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement
Erie County, New York

Proposed Erie County Agribusiness Park Project

regulations if small quantities of regulated hazardous waste are generated. No solid waste will be disposed

of on site.

Natural gas would need to be extended to the site, but at this time, there are no plans to extend this service
to the site.

As the Project will alter drainage patterns on site, a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) will
be prepared and enacted, using a “regional” stormwater management approach. As individual developments
are built out, they may be required to implement their own supplemental stormwater management practice.

Noise, Odor, and Light

At present, noise at and around the Project Site is largely? associated with current low-density rural
residential and agricultural activities, including farm equlpmenf\operatlon the times of which vary
depending on crop and season. Intermittent noise is also generated from vehicles traveling along Eden
Evans Center Road. The Project Site is relatively 1solated from many remdenﬁal noise receptors. The closest
residences are at the south of the property on EdeQ Evans Center Road ad_la%ent to the Project Site. The
anticipated increase in noise levels resulting from op atlons associated with the”*future light and medium
manufacturing and industrial uses on the individual development ots may increase the current noise levels
associated with on-going operations ofgunoundlng busmesses However, because th\antlmpated uses in
the Project are permitted uses in the ex1s%1ng«tgwn zoning code‘_and will be required to adhere to Section
200-26(C)(6) of the Town of Evans zonii‘lg code;.a detailed noisg study is not recommended. If further
assessment is warranted due to the proposed locatlon or type of uses, then anoise study should be completed
in adherence with NYSDEC n01se policy as part of site plan rev1ew “
& G Nt <

Construction actlwtles‘for the Projects awill result in® gemporary noise impacts, primarily due to the operation
of construction-related equlpment 1nclud1ng trucks entering and exiting the Project Site, and heavy
equlpment operations. HoweVer construcnon is ant1c1pated to be limited to “normal business hours,” from

about 8: 00 am to 6:00. pm.

Current ‘odors present at the PI’O_]eCt\Slte are generally nonexistent, but when they are present, they are
consistent wlth those of rural ar%as and agricultural operations. The Town of Evans regulates odors in its
zoning code Sectlon 200-26(C)(7), which applies to all industrial properties (the Project Site is zoned LI):

Odorous matter. T he emission of odorous matter so as to produce a public nuisance beyond the lot occupied
by the use shall not be permitted. Proposed uses for the Project Site are not anticipated to have a significant

adverse effect.

Project construction followed by the operation of commercial tenants on the Project Site will increase the
amount of artificial light emitted throughout the Project Site. Currently, no artificial light is emitted from
the Project Site except around the buildings along the Eden Evans Center Road boundary, so all additional
lighting will have some noticeable impact on the Project Site at night. All construction activities and
commercial tenant operations must adhere to the Town of Evans zoning code light requirements. Although
adding artificial lights to the buildings, roadways, and parking lots is needed for safety, lighting will be
reduced as much as possible to avoid disturbance to nearby wildlife and other natural processes occurring

in and around the Project Site boundaries.

Executive Summary ES-8 Executive Summary

-20-



Town of Evans

Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement
Erie County, New York

Proposed Erie County Agribusiness Park Project

Public Safety

The demand for public safety services (police, medical, and fire protection) may increase as facilities are
constructed and employment increases. This demand is not anticipated to increase significantly above a
level where additional public safety resources would be necessary.

Socioeconomic Conditions

Implementation of the Master Plan and future build-out of the individual development sites will not create
substantial population growth within the Project Site. However, the Project is expected to generate direct
and indirect positive economic effects through increased employm?gt opportunities and can be considered
a catalyst for economic development that may result in some limited population growth in the local area

and region.

According to the ECIDA Agribusiness Park Employment Ilgpact Sta?é‘tﬁgyﬁt,_ under the Preferred alternative
(maximum build-out of the individual development lots) rﬁay add a totz?l"é_f approximately 5,849 one-time
construction jobs (Assuming a three-year construction timeframe, the "e;'\s"ti’mated annual impact is
approximately 1,950 jobs per year). In addition;\accqrding to order—of-maéiﬁ@de employment yields
published by National Association for Industrial and .lgfﬁce;?/grks (NAIOP), the Project may add
approximately 803 permanent jobs up\dh;az(‘:}_lieving sta%i’l{fzedg opéi‘ations in Year §t0 Year 5 (Wildan
Financial Services). \\ N \\

X, LT

- Sk e
Overall, socioeconomic impacts from impl‘émgntatibn‘g_f the Master Plan and development of the individual
parcels on the Project Site are expected to be positive, and, thgrefo?é,'\;no mitigation of them is deemed

necessary. h Ps ol

hoes

Community Facilitiés:énd Serv?é:eé

\ ;
Development .at-the Project Site will have minimal to no impact on community facilities and services;
therefore, 110 mitigation measures are deemed ngcessary.,

Ty b - i L& “ !

Tempb-rg\ry and Short-Te{Qj I*mp*ac;t‘_s'

Developmetit. of the Project Si:té“:will result in temporary and short-term impacts related to construction
activities. The short-term noise impacts will cease upon completion of the Project construction activities.
To mitigate short-f‘erp; air quality i:ﬁtlpacts caused by construction activities, low-sulfur fuel should be used
whenever possible, a'ﬁdi éngine idling time should be limited. Dust will be controlled by utilizing the
appropriate best management pf_éctices (BMPs), such as use of mulch, water sprinkling, and wind barriers.

2,
e

Significant Unavoidable Adverse Impacts

Certain environmental impacts associated with the Proposed Action are unavoidable. Unavoidable adverse
impacts have been reduced to the extent practicable through the design of the Master Plan, and, where
appropriate, through the identification of mitigation measures and use of BMPs. Unavoidable
environmental impacts associated with the Proposed Action include:

e Conversion of 99 and 48 acres of land to impervious land cover from Option 1 (full build-out) and
Option 2 (partial build-out), respectively (i.e., conversion to buildings, parking lots, and roads).

Executive Summory ES-9 Exceutive Summary

-21-



Town of Evans

Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement
Erie County, New York

Proposed Erie County Agribusiness Park Project

* Changes to the existing drainage conditions caused by the increase in impervious surface area and
potential impacts from erosion and sedimentation of local drainageways.

e Short- and long-term impacts to the existing noise setting due to construction and operation of the
developed properties.

¢ Change in land use from vacant and commercial to LI, as permitted by the Town of Evans’ zoning

code.

e Changes to the visual setting of the Project Site.

¢ Minor increases in local traffic.

*  Short-term, temporary impacts related to construction activities, including noise from construction
vehicles and equipment, and short-term impacts to af[ quahay from dust and exhaust emissions. In
addition, construction activities may increase the potentlal forthxted drainage problems, although
implementation of BMPs will ensure these pré blems are mlmmlzed

Irreversible and Irretrievable Commltment{ Resources \\i

The Project will require some irreversible and u-reu'levable comrfiitment of certel\nu{iatenal natural, and
financial resources. Existing vacant and Open-space lands and S ,me current vegetation Will be replaced with
development. Various construction mate‘nals and building supphes will also be committed to the future
build-out of the individual development logs. The Juse of constructlon materials, such as gravel, concrete,
steel, etc., will represent a long-term commmnent of these resources. The expenditure of public funds will
continue to be required throughout the process for envuonmental rev1ew site and building design,
permitting, site plan approval and:construction phases‘ of mﬁastrueture for the Project. The commitment
of these resources makeg them unavmlable for othe{ uses. -

y.

Growth-lnducmg Impacts\t\ y

Implementatlon of the Master Plan and bu11d-out of the md1v1dual development lots are not likely to result
ina greater level of development thmthe ex1st1ng zoning otherwise allows. Any secondary development
pressure (i.¢., for housing and commerc;gl services resulting from development of the Project Site) can
easily be absorbed by vacant lands and underQeveloped properties, and redevelopment of existing structures
and lands, within. the Town of Evans and surrounding communities. Therefore, the Project is not anticipated
to result in mgmﬁcant negative 1mpacts to the surrounding area or the Town of Evans as the result of further

growth in the commul}lty

Cumulative Impacts
In general, cumulative impact analysis of external projects proposed for construction in the region is
required by SEQRA where the external projects have been specifically identified. Since no external projects

have been identified to be considered under an in-depth analysis of cumulative impacts associated with the
Project, no further analysis has been determined to be appropriate for this action.

Any development of individual lots within the Project Site that exceeds the thresholds identified in Section
5.0 of this DGEIS that necessitates additional SEQRA review would also be required to address potential

cumulative impacts.

Executive Summary ES-10 Executive Summary

-22-



Town of Evans

Draft Generic Environmental Impact Statement
Erie County, New York

Proposed Erie County Agribusiness Park Project

Additionally, the Master Plan is designed to meet market demand in terms of lot size, access, and
infrastructure. The road layout and lot configuration is flexible and capable of being developed in phases.
Therefore, not all the roads and utility infrastructure must be constructed at one time in order to build out
some or all the individual development lots. The assessments conducted for this DGEIS consider the full
build-out of all the infrastructure and development of all the land available in accordance with the current
zoning. The implementation of the Master Plan, including the mitigation measures identified herein, will
be no less protective of the environment if all or part of the Project is completed.

ES.4 Alternatives Considered

Preferred Alternative: Option 1, Full Build-Out: The preferred alt’ernatlve is the implementation of the
Master Plan for the full build-out of an agriculture light mdl}sti{al park in order to advance the ILDC’s

economic and community development goals. Maximum buil Id-out of the individual development lots is
expected to create approximately 1.89 million square feet" of office: gon&olled growth facility, and cold
storage facility space. The preferred alternative presents | the ILDC’s obj ectlves to have in place a conceptual
design for roads and utilities that can be implementéd, in a phased approach ag needed, to facilitate the full
build-out of the Project Site. The potential impacts- of unplementatlon of the Master Plan and future build-
out of the development lots (the preferred alternatlve) a(\summarlzed in Section 3 of t thlS DGEIS. Potential
impacts have been reduced or m1t1gated through concept demgn and the estabhshment of regulatory

requirements. :Z ! &

~.

Potential Wetland/Conservation Area Optzan 55&0}1 2; Partzal Build-Out: This alternative is designed to
be flexible in terms of bulldmg lot placement-and conﬁguratlon and road and utility layout. Option 2 was
developed for unplementatlon if site condltlons warranf fewer lots being feasible for construction and
development, and the: net developabl\e area is redn\ced leferences under these scenarios would result in
fewer lots being developed and a reductlon in the overall length of roads and extent of utility installation

x.!

required. . Ui {,»»; o
3 : k

No-Actzon Alternatzve Under the no-actlon alternatlve ‘the Project Site would remain in its existing
condltlon There would be no further pubhc or private investment in infrastructure improvements. The
property “would not be subd1v1ded mto individual development lots and would remain vacant and
underutlhzed resulting ina loss of future ebonomlc employment, and fiscal benefits to the community.

= }"

The no-action alternatlve would refsult in economic uncertalntles and does not meet the ILDC’s objectives
to obtain shovel-ready certification and market the Project Site for development as an agribusiness park;

therefore, it was cons1dered but not selected as the preferred alternative.
~

Executive Sumimary ES-11 Executive Summary

-23-



